

Division of Criminal Justice Services

Quarterly Activity Report County Re-entry Task Forces (CRTF) July – September 2018 Data as of October 2018

Quarterly Activity Reports are provided to ATI, ATD, jail-based, employment programs, and CRTFs funded by DCJS. These preliminary reports reflect data that are reported to DCJS as of the date indicated and should be reviewed carefully by the programs. Any corrections should be included in the data submission for the next reporting period. An annual report with final case counts will be distributed after all adjustments have been made.

Issued April 2019

Background and Report Tables1
CRTF Intakes 2017-20182
CRTF Discharges 2017-20183
All CRTF Programs4
Albany County CRTF
Bronx County CRTF6
Broome County CRTF7
Dutchess County CRTF8
Erie County CRTF9
Kings County CRTF10
Monroe County CRTF11
Nassau County CRTF12
New York County CRTF13
Niagara County CRTF14
Oneida County CRTF
Onondaga County CRTF16
Orange County CRTF17
Queens County CRTF18
Rensselaer County CRTF19
Rockland County CRTF
Schenectady County CRTF21
Suffolk County CRTF
Ulster County CRTF
Westchester County CRTF24
Appendix A. Detailed Description of Tables25

Table of Contents

Background

The NYS Division of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) provides important feedback to funded programs through this Quarterly Activity Report. The report presents the number of participants admitted and discharged each quarter, as well as a year-to-date total. The report includes information on participant characteristics, such as sex, age, DOCCS supervision level, and current criminal charges, for County Re-entry Task Forces (CRTFs) funded by DCJS. The report also includes counts of admissions and successful completions of approved CBI and employment readiness programs for each quarter and the year-to-date.

Report Tables

The Quarterly Activity Report presents the tables listed below. A detailed description of each table, including how cases were counted, can be found in Appendix A. A description of the process used to match cases to criminal history information can be found in Appendix B.

- CRTF Intakes, by Program
- CRTF Discharges, by Program
- Characteristics of Program Intakes, by Program
- Characteristics of Program Discharges, by Program

CRTF Intakes 2017-2018							
Program Name	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD		
All CRTF Programs	1,463	1,431	1,263	1,100	5,257		
Albany County CRTF	60	62	95	71	288		
Bronx County CRTF	74	92	NR	NR	166		
Broome County CRTF	54	52	32	32	170		
Dutchess County CRTF	59	55	41	27	182		
Erie County CRTF	127	131	167	113	538		
Kings County CRTF	82	65	69	103	319		
Monroe County CRTF	144	106	105	92	447		
Nassau County CRTF	38	37	49	81	205		
New York County CRTF	75	91	61	14	241		
Niagara County CRTF	41	37	33	51	162		
Oneida County CRTF	79	68	68	87	302		
Onondaga County CRTF	179	147	123	129	578		
Orange County CRTF	52	58	48	42	200		
Queens County CRTF	98	104	62	11	275		
Rensselaer County CRTF	50	42	33	36	161		
Rockland County CRTF	26	29	31	19	105		
Schenectady County CRTF	36	59	51	49	195		
Suffolk County CRTF	103	94	94	86	377		
Ulster County CRTF	31	25	42	24	122		
Westchester County CRTF	55	77	59	33	224		

NR = Not Reported (EAC is testing features of the Community Corrections Data Submission application).

CRTF Discharges 2017-2018							
Program Name	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD		
All CRTF Programs	890	767	930	992	3,579		
Albany County CRTF	56	69	56	111	292		
Bronx County CRTF	12	0	NR	NR	12		
Broome County CRTF	43	17	59	31	150		
Dutchess County CRTF	17	36	51	32	136		
Erie County CRTF	95	100	80	133	408		
Kings County CRTF	4	4	84	29	121		
Monroe County CRTF	101	83	65	80	329		
Nassau County CRTF	0	11	2	36	49		
New York County CRTF	90	74	50	2	216		
Niagara County CRTF	5	4	0	0	9		
Oneida County CRTF	63	70	67	83	283		
Onondaga County CRTF	158	28	138	142	466		
Orange County CRTF	57	71	69	62	259		
Queens County CRTF	0	0	0	14	14		
Rensselaer County CRTF	0	23	45	37	105		
Rockland County CRTF	9	24	29	22	84		
Schenectady County CRTF	42	36	7	43	128		
Suffolk County CRTF	104	93	93	102	392		
Ulster County CRTF	34	18	35	33	120		
Westchester County CRTF	0	6	0	0	6		

NR = Not Reported (EAC is testing features of the Community Corrections Data Submission application).

All CRTF Programs

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	1,463	1,431	1,263	1,100	5,257
Percent Matched to CCH	97%	97%	96%	96%	96%
Number Matched to CCH	1,414	1,384	1,210	1,053	5,061
Number Male	1,319	1,264	1,101	965	4,649
Number Female	95	112	104	88	399
Number 24 and Younger	258	243	230	148	879
Number 25 to 29	365	306	270	273	1,214
Number 30 to 49	608	630	538	486	2,262
Number 50 and Older	178	196	166	143	683
Percent Supervision Level 1	40%	38%	36%	38%	38%
Percent Supervision Level 2	18%	19%	17%	18%	18%
Percent Supervision Level 3	34%	35%	36%	35%	35%
Percent Supervision Level 4	8%	7%	10%	9%	8%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	639	648	544	450	2,281
Felony Drug	309	282	267	220	1,078
Felony Property	212	164	164	153	693
Other Felony	247	281	233	225	986
Number Admitted to T4C	46	76	50	81	253
Number Admitted to MRT	5	16	12	1	34
Number Admitted to RSW!	130	155	154	137	576
Number Admitted to CBI	0	18	8	16	42
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	121	89	113	91	414

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	890	767	930	992	3,579
Number Successfully Discharged	649	561	596	641	2,447
Percent Successfully Discharged	73%	73%	64%	65%	68%
Average LOS Successful	68	70	92	82	78
Percent With Arrest in Program	7%	8%	8%	8%	8%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	4%	3%	4%	5%	4%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	2%	1%	3%	3%	2%
Average Days to First Arrest	51	61	66	62	61
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	44	56	75	67	62
Successful Completions T4C	19	22	54	34	129
Successful Completions MRT	3	3	2	2	10
Successful Completions RSW!	60	68	94	102	324
Successful Completions CBI	7	0	3	3	13
Successful Completions CBI/ER	50	56	55	83	244

Albany County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	60	62	95	71	288
Percent Matched to CCH	98%	97%	97%	100%	98%
Number Matched to CCH	59	60	92	71	282
Number Male	54	53	83	66	256
Number Female	5	6	9	5	25
Number 24 and Younger	8	9	16	7	40
Number 25 to 29	16	9	20	18	63
Number 30 to 49	26	35	35	35	131
Number 50 and Older	8	6	21	11	46
Percent Supervision Level 1	49%	53%	42%	62%	51%
Percent Supervision Level 2	10%	10%	15%	13%	12%
Percent Supervision Level 3	29%	31%	35%	24%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 4	12%	7%	8%	2%	7%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	19	18	44	24	105
Felony Drug	20	22	16	19	77
Felony Property	7	6	11	8	32
Other Felony	13	14	21	19	67
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	16	15	42	26	99
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	56	69	56	111	292
Number Successfully Discharged	47	66	47	97	257
Percent Successfully Discharged	84%	96%	84%	87%	88%
Average LOS Successful	45	48	45	45	46
Percent With Arrest in Program	5%	0%	7%	5%	4%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	2%	0%	4%	2%	2%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	2%	1%	0%	3%	2%
Average Days to First Arrest	22	NA	20	29	24
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	13	NA	24	26	22
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	6	7	10	21	44
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Bronx County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	74	92	NR	NR	166
Percent Matched to CCH	97%	100%			99%
Number Matched to CCH	72	92			164
Number Male	69	86			155
Number Female	3	6			9
Number 24 and Younger	7	15			22
Number 25 to 29	21	19			40
Number 30 to 49	32	40			72
Number 50 and Older	12	18			30
Percent Supervision Level 1	47%	46%			46%
Percent Supervision Level 2	12%	16%			15%
Percent Supervision Level 3	34%	38%			37%
Percent Supervision Level 4	5%	0%			2%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	41	50			91
Felony Drug	15	8			23
Felony Property	10	9			19
Other Felony	6	24			30
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT	1	0			1
Number Admitted to RSW!	0	0			0
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	12	0	NR	NR	12
Number Successfully Discharged	6				6
Percent Successfully Discharged	50%				50%
Average LOS Successful	60				60
Percent With Arrest in Program	17%				17%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	8%				8%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	0%				0%
Average Days to First Arrest	12				12
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	21				21
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT	1	0			1
Successful Completions RSW!	0	0			0
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

NR = Not Reported (EAC is testing features of the Community Corrections Data Submission application).

Broome County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	54	52	32	32	170
Percent Matched to CCH	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Number Matched to CCH	54	52	32	32	170
Number Male	39	40	22	24	125
Number Female	15	12	10	8	45
Number 24 and Younger	4	3	6	5	18
Number 25 to 29	16	12	7	11	46
Number 30 to 49	24	33	17	15	89
Number 50 and Older	9	4	2	1	16
Percent Supervision Level 1	43%	40%	34%	41%	40%
Percent Supervision Level 2	31%	37%	38%	41%	36%
Percent Supervision Level 3	11%	15%	19%	13%	14%
Percent Supervision Level 4	15%	8%	9%	6%	10%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	16	17	6	6	45
Felony Drug	12	11	6	7	36
Felony Property	14	5	9	6	34
Other Felony	12	19	10	12	53
Number Admitted to T4C	16	16	9	1	42
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	7	25	6	16	54
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	43	17	59	31	150
Number Successfully Discharged	37	14	47	19	117
Percent Successfully Discharged	86%	82%	80%	61%	78%
Average LOS Successful	74	72	102	119	93
Percent With Arrest in Program	9%	12%	7%	0%	7%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	5%	0%	3%	0%	3%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%
Average Days to First Arrest	46	36	50	NA	46
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	34	NA	58	NA	46
Successful Completions T4C	10	0	14	0	24
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	7	16	4	8	35
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					
1					

Dutchess County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	59	55	41	27	182
Percent Matched to CCH	95%	100%	83%	100%	95%
Number Matched to CCH	56	55	34	27	172
Number Male	51	50	30	25	156
Number Female	5	5	4	2	16
Number 24 and Younger	10	7	9	4	30
Number 25 to 29	13	16	7	10	46
Number 30 to 49	27	27	12	9	75
Number 50 and Older	6	5	6	4	21
Percent Supervision Level 1	29%	31%	32%	30%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 2	23%	20%	12%	22%	20%
Percent Supervision Level 3	46%	42%	50%	44%	45%
Percent Supervision Level 4	2%	7%	6%	4%	5%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	21	23	12	11	67
Felony Drug	14	13	11	6	44
Felony Property	6	4	4	3	17
Other Felony	15	15	7	7	44
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	27	37	25	3	92
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	17	36	51	32	136
Number Successfully Discharged	13	25	38	26	102
Percent Successfully Discharged	76%	69%	75%	81%	75%
Average LOS Successful	66	87	94	103	91
Percent With Arrest in Program	0%	11%	6%	6%	7%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	0%	3%	2%	6%	3%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	6%	3%	2%	19%	7%
Average Days to First Arrest	NA	60	60	76	63
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	NA	46	53	76	63
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	15	14	20	1	50
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Erie County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	127	131	167	113	538
Percent Matched to CCH	98%	97%	98%	99%	98%
Number Matched to CCH	124	127	164	112	527
Number Male	116	122	153	102	493
Number Female	8	4	11	10	33
Number 24 and Younger	20	24	28	13	85
Number 25 to 29	33	26	31	26	116
Number 30 to 49	46	57	84	55	242
Number 50 and Older	24	20	21	17	82
Percent Supervision Level 1	38%	29%	21%	22%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 2	11%	29%	21%	12%	13%
Percent Supervision Level 3	23%	43%	50%	41%	33%
Percent Supervision Level 4	22%	0%	7%	24%	20%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	82	77	100	67	326
Felony Drug	14	14	16	11	55
Felony Property	14	15	27	16	72
Other Felony	13	19	21	16	69
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	10	7	17	16	50

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	95	100	80	133	408
Number Successfully Discharged	63	58	44	93	258
Percent Successfully Discharged	66%	58%	55%	70%	63%
Average LOS Successful	70	60	66	103	79
Percent With Arrest in Program	4%	5%	6%	11%	7%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	2%	2%	3%	8%	4%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	1%	2%	1%	2%	2%
Average Days to First Arrest	31	31	34	70	51
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	33	32	38	82	65
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER	6	2	8	9	25

Kings County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	82	65	69	103	319
Percent Matched to CCH	83%	83%	84%	77%	81%
Number Matched to CCH	68	54	58	79	259
Number Male	64	53	57	76	250
Number Female	4	1	1	3	9
Number 24 and Younger	18	9	9	16	52
Number 25 to 29	13	15	12	24	64
Number 30 to 49	25	24	26	30	105
Number 50 and Older	11	6	11	9	37
Percent Supervision Level 1	44%	30%	26%	53%	40%
Percent Supervision Level 2	7%	23%	11%	12%	13%
Percent Supervision Level 3	43%	40%	54%	34%	42%
Percent Supervision Level 4	4%	8%	9%	1%	5%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	25	35	30	45	135
Felony Drug	15	7	11	7	40
Felony Property	8	4	7	12	31
Other Felony	18	8	10	15	51
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	0	4	15	19	38
Number Admitted to CBI	0	18	8	16	42
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	4	4	84	29	121
Number Successfully Discharged	0	1	24	14	39
Percent Successfully Discharged	0%	25%	29%	48%	32%
Average LOS Successful		190	284	193	249
Percent With Arrest in Program	0%	50%	29%	31%	29%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	0%	25%	17%	24%	18%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	0%	0%	19%	7%	15%
Average Days to First Arrest	NA	8	126	99	113
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	NA	9	122	114	114
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	0	4	13	15	32
Successful Completions CBI	7	0	3	3	13
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Monroe County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	144	106	105	92	447
Percent Matched to CCH	99%	100%	96%	99%	98%
Number Matched to CCH	142	106	101	91	440
Number Male	133	95	87	88	403
Number Female	9	9	14	3	35
Number 24 and Younger	27	18	18	13	76
Number 25 to 29	40	25	21	21	107
Number 30 to 49	58	46	43	42	189
Number 50 and Older	17	15	19	15	66
Percent Supervision Level 1	42%	40%	37%	37%	39%
Percent Supervision Level 2	20%	19%	16%	21%	19%
Percent Supervision Level 3	27%	32%	32%	31%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 4	11%	9%	15%	11%	11%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	83	65	62	51	261
Felony Drug	18	13	16	16	63
Felony Property	24	12	10	11	57
Other Felony	15	16	12	13	56
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	17	8	8	13	46

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	101	83	65	80	329
Number Successfully Discharged	73	59	57	69	258
Percent Successfully Discharged	72%	71%	88%	86%	78%
Average LOS Successful	53	63	66	78	65
Percent With Arrest in Program	4%	6%	5%	3%	4%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	2%	2%	2%	1%	2%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	1%	1%	0%	5%	2%
Average Days to First Arrest	18	36	45	72	38
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	9	36	48	132	45
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER	16	8	8	12	44

Nassau County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	38	37	49	81	205
Percent Matched to CCH	95%	97%	98%	98%	97%
Number Matched to CCH	36	36	48	79	199
Number Male	34	34	48	71	187
Number Female	2	2	0	8	12
Number 24 and Younger	2	5	11	7	25
Number 25 to 29	10	11	14	18	53
Number 30 to 49	13	14	17	44	88
Number 50 and Older	11	5	6	10	32
Percent Supervision Level 1	23%	11%	NR	38%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 2	23%	11%	NR	26%	24%
Percent Supervision Level 3	54%	78%	NR	36%	46%
Percent Supervision Level 4	0%	0%	NR	0%	0%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	11	15	27	28	81
Felony Drug	13	10	14	23	60
Felony Property	4	4	2	7	17
Other Felony	8	7	5	21	41
Number Admitted to T4C	0	0	3	17	20
Number Admitted to MRT	0	4	5	0	9
Number Admitted to RSW!	5	4	0	0	9
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	0	11	2	36	49
Number Successfully Discharged		1	1	4	6
Percent Successfully Discharged		9%	50%	11%	12%
Average LOS Successful		55	0	50	42
Percent With Arrest in Program		0%	50%	14%	12%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program		0%	0%	11%	8%
Percent Not Matched to CCH		9%	0%	0%	2%
Average Days to First Arrest		NA	21	27	26
Average Days to First Felony Arrest		NA	NA	22	22
Successful Completions T4C	0	0	3	0	3
Successful Completions MRT	1	3	2	1	7
Successful Completions RSW!	4	4	0	0	8
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

NR = Not Reported

New York County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	75	91	61	14	241
Percent Matched to CCH	100%	99%	97%	100%	99%
Number Matched to CCH	75	90	59	14	238
Number Male	73	87	57	14	231
Number Female	2	3	2	0	7
Number 24 and Younger	24	25	14	7	70
Number 25 to 29	23	26	13	4	66
Number 30 to 49	23	30	24	3	80
Number 50 and Older	5	9	8	0	22
Percent Supervision Level 1	67%	40%	32%	50%	47%
Percent Supervision Level 2	12%	13%	14%	7%	13%
Percent Supervision Level 3	16%	45%	53%	36%	37%
Percent Supervision Level 4	5%	1%	2%	7%	3%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	41	48	24	6	119
Felony Drug	14	28	21	6	69
Felony Property	5	4	5	1	15
Other Felony	15	10	9	1	35
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	28	0	19	28	75

Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
90	74	50	2	216
87	74	49	2	212
97%	100%	98%	100%	98%
58	50	45	58	52
9%	9%	6%	0%	8%
6%	3%	4%	0%	4%
0%	0%	4%	0%	1%
42	22	21	NA	31
38	18	28	NA	32
18	7	1	32	58
	90 87 97% 58 9% 6% 0% 42 38	90 74 87 74 97% 100% 58 50 9% 9% 6% 3% 0% 0% 42 22 38 18	90745087744997%100%98%5850459%9%6%6%3%4%0%0%4%422221381828	9074502877449297%100%98%100%585045589%9%6%0%6%3%4%0%6%0%4%0%0%0%4%0%422221NA381828NA

Niagara County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	41	37	33	51	162
Percent Matched to CCH	93%	89%	67%	92%	86%
Number Matched to CCH	38	33	22	47	140
Number Male	35	31	20	45	131
Number Female	3	2	2	2	9
Number 24 and Younger	4	5	3	4	16
Number 25 to 29	8	6	3	17	34
Number 30 to 49	22	15	12	21	70
Number 50 and Older	4	7	4	5	20
Percent Supervision Level 1	23%	35%	35%	64%	42%
Percent Supervision Level 2	23%	13%	35%	7%	17%
Percent Supervision Level 3	34%	39%	12%	21%	28%
Percent Supervision Level 4	20%	13%	18%	7%	14%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	12	10	10	17	49
Felony Drug	10	5	2	8	25
Felony Property	12	11	6	9	38
Other Felony	4	7	4	13	28
Number Admitted to T4C	0	9	0	24	33
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	0	0	5	19	24
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	5	4	0	0	9
Number Successfully Discharged	2	4			6
Percent Successfully Discharged	40%	100%			67%
Average LOS Successful	63	106			92
Percent With Arrest in Program	20%	25%			22%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	20%	25%			22%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	20%	25%			22%
Average Days to First Arrest	31	75			53
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	31	75			53
Successful Completions T4C	0	7	6	3	16
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	0	0	2	11	13
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Oneida County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	79	68	68	87	302
Percent Matched to CCH	99%	100%	100%	100%	100%
Number Matched to CCH	78	68	68	87	301
Number Male	76	61	56	78	271
Number Female	2	6	11	9	28
Number 24 and Younger	18	9	18	9	54
Number 25 to 29	18	13	12	23	66
Number 30 to 49	38	35	28	42	143
Number 50 and Older	4	10	9	13	36
Percent Supervision Level 1	38%	38%	28%	29%	33%
Percent Supervision Level 2	15%	23%	14%	16%	17%
Percent Supervision Level 3	45%	30%	45%	54%	44%
Percent Supervision Level 4	1%	9%	14%	1%	6%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	29	23	24	29	105
Felony Drug	19	20	25	28	92
Felony Property	16	12	8	14	50
Other Felony	13	12	11	15	51
Number Admitted to T4C	0	0	20	6	26
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	14	0	10	14	38
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	63	70	67	83	283
Number Successfully Discharged	51	66	57	72	246
Percent Successfully Discharged	81%	94%	85%	87%	87%
Average LOS Successful	48	50	52	48	50
Percent With Arrest in Program	2%	3%	4%	6%	4%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	2%	1%	0%	0%	1%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	2%	0%	0%	0%	0%
Average Days to First Arrest	40	8	13	29	22
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	40	4	NA	NA	22
Successful Completions T4C	0	0	6	5	11
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	5	0	0	19	24
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Onondaga County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	179	147	123	129	578
Percent Matched to CCH	96%	94%	98%	95%	96%
Number Matched to CCH	172	138	120	123	553
Number Male	165	124	113	113	515
Number Female	7	13	6	10	36
Number 24 and Younger	33	22	25	28	108
Number 25 to 29	45	31	30	33	139
Number 30 to 49	82	68	57	47	254
Number 50 and Older	12	16	7	15	50
Percent Supervision Level 1	44%	50%	52%	50%	48%
Percent Supervision Level 2	19%	16%	26%	25%	20%
Percent Supervision Level 3	36%	30%	22%	25%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 4	1%	0%	1%	0%	1%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	67	54	47	46	214
Felony Drug	47	30	24	25	126
Felony Property	26	20	16	22	84
Other Felony	31	31	33	30	125
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	24	40	22	8	94
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	158	28	138	142	466
Number Successfully Discharged	60	12	26	30	128
Percent Successfully Discharged	38%	43%	19%	21%	27%
Average LOS Successful	92	114	101	93	96
Percent With Arrest in Program	9%	14%	12%	13%	11%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	6%	7%	4%	6%	6%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	3%	4%	6%	2%	3%
Average Days to First Arrest	40	66	45	73	55
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	36	82	32	74	50
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	11	17	17	14	59
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Orange County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	52	58	48	42	200
Percent Matched to CCH	100%	98%	98%	95%	98%
Number Matched to CCH	52	57	47	40	196
Number Male	47	47	44	37	175
Number Female	5	9	3	3	20
Number 24 and Younger	13	8	6	6	33
Number 25 to 29	11	8	9	8	36
Number 30 to 49	23	30	24	23	100
Number 50 and Older	4	10	7	2	23
Percent Supervision Level 1	35%	18%	15%	31%	24%
Percent Supervision Level 2	24%	18%	17%	18%	19%
Percent Supervision Level 3	31%	45%	43%	28%	38%
Percent Supervision Level 4	10%	18%	26%	23%	19%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	24	26	19	22	91
Felony Drug	14	8	11	5	38
Felony Property	8	12	7	6	33
Other Felony	6	10	10	7	33
Number Admitted to T4C	16	13	0	7	36
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	15	10	8	10	43
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	57	71	69	62	259
Number Successfully Discharged	36	39	54	40	169
Percent Successfully Discharged	63%	55%	78%	65%	65%
Average LOS Successful	155	195	134	104	145
Percent With Arrest in Program	21%	24%	4%	11%	15%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	11%	7%	4%	6%	7%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	0%	0%	1%	2%	1%
Average Days to First Arrest	116	109	87	47	98
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	91	130	87	25	86
Successful Completions T4C	0	2	5	6	13
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	0	6	13	3	22
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Queens County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	98	104	62	11	275
Percent Matched to CCH	99%	94%	97%	100%	97%
Number Matched to CCH	97	98	60	11	266
Number Male	91	90	58	10	249
Number Female	6	8	2	1	17
Number 24 and Younger	22	33	12	0	67
Number 25 to 29	28	19	16	3	66
Number 30 to 49	35	35	27	8	105
Number 50 and Older	12	11	5	0	28
Percent Supervision Level 1	33%	35%	43%	27%	36%
Percent Supervision Level 2	11%	15%	5%	0%	11%
Percent Supervision Level 3	49%	45%	48%	64%	48%
Percent Supervision Level 4	4%	5%	3%	9%	5%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	49	54	36	8	147
Felony Drug	16	16	10	2	44
Felony Property	12	8	3	0	23
Other Felony	20	20	11	1	52
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	52	35	24	4	115

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	0	0	0	14	14
Number Successfully Discharged				3	3
Percent Successfully Discharged				21%	21%
Average LOS Successful				247	247
Percent With Arrest in Program				29%	29%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program				14%	14%
Percent Not Matched to CCH				0%	0%
Average Days to First Arrest				86	86
Average Days to First Felony Arrest				42	42
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER	10	13	12	5	40

Rensselaer County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	50	42	33	36	161
Percent Matched to CCH	100%	98%	100%	97%	99%
Number Matched to CCH	50	41	33	35	159
Number Male	46	37	29	30	142
Number Female	4	4	3	5	16
Number 24 and Younger	9	10	8	8	35
Number 25 to 29	13	4	10	7	34
Number 30 to 49	25	23	11	17	76
Number 50 and Older	3	4	3	3	13
Percent Supervision Level 1	44%	32%	47%	41%	41%
Percent Supervision Level 2	12%	12%	19%	18%	15%
Percent Supervision Level 3	26%	37%	25%	26%	29%
Percent Supervision Level 4	18%	20%	9%	15%	16%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	15	11	10	9	45
Felony Drug	18	16	10	10	54
Felony Property	5	2	2	7	16
Other Felony	12	12	11	9	44
Number Admitted to T4C	0	10	7	2	19
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!	13	11	6	12	42
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	0	23	45	37	105
Number Successfully Discharged		19	34	25	78
Percent Successfully Discharged		83%	76%	68%	74%
Average LOS Successful		83	94	89	90
Percent With Arrest in Program		4%	2%	11%	6%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program		4%	0%	11%	5%
Percent Not Matched to CCH		0%	2%	0%	1%
Average Days to First Arrest		14	31	52	42
Average Days to First Felony Arrest		14	NA	52	44
Successful Completions T4C	0	0	2	7	9
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!	7	0	12	5	24
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Rockland County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	26	29	31	19	105
Percent Matched to CCH	96%	100%	94%	89%	95%
Number Matched to CCH	25	29	29	17	100
Number Male	24	27	26	16	93
Number Female	1	2	3	1	7
Number 24 and Younger	2	4	7	1	14
Number 25 to 29	9	9	7	5	30
Number 30 to 49	11	10	11	6	38
Number 50 and Older	3	6	4	5	18
Percent Supervision Level 1	20%	48%	38%	35%	36%
Percent Supervision Level 2	48%	24%	17%	29%	29%
Percent Supervision Level 3	24%	28%	41%	29%	31%
Percent Supervision Level 4	8%	0%	3%	6%	4%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	11	12	11	6	40
Felony Drug	2	5	8	3	18
Felony Property	6	5	4	4	19
Other Felony	6	7	6	4	23
Number Admitted to T4C	6	26	11	20	63
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	9	24	29	22	84
Number Successfully Discharged	9	10	19	12	50
Percent Successfully Discharged	100%	42%	66%	55%	60%
Average LOS Successful	273	135	339	225	259
Percent With Arrest in Program	0%	8%	3%	5%	5%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	0%	4%	0%	5%	2%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	0%	0%	3%	0%	1%
Average Days to First Arrest	NA	168	41	6	96
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	NA	11	NA	6	8
Successful Completions T4C	9	9	16	13	47
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Schenectady County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	36	59	51	49	195
Percent Matched to CCH	100%	95%	100%	100%	98%
Number Matched to CCH	36	56	51	49	192
Number Male	33	50	47	42	172
Number Female	3	5	4	7	19
Number 24 and Younger	6	10	6	7	29
Number 25 to 29	6	8	11	11	36
Number 30 to 49	21	29	26	19	95
Number 50 and Older	3	8	8	12	31
Percent Supervision Level 1	44%	42%	42%	40%	42%
Percent Supervision Level 2	18%	22%	15%	19%	18%
Percent Supervision Level 3	32%	27%	35%	28%	30%
Percent Supervision Level 4	6%	9%	8%	13%	9%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	11	17	15	13	56
Felony Drug	10	15	18	13	56
Felony Property	5	10	5	9	29
Other Felony	10	14	13	14	51
Number Admitted to T4C	8	2	0	4	14
Number Admitted to MRT	4	12	7	1	24
Number Admitted to RSW!	9	9	13	10	41
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER					

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	42	36	7	43	128
Number Successfully Discharged	42	30	4	31	107
Percent Successfully Discharged	100%	83%	57%	72%	84%
Average LOS Successful	54	77	207	68	70
Percent With Arrest in Program	2%	3%	0%	5%	3%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	2%	3%	0%	2%	2%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%
Average Days to First Arrest	49	21	NA	70	52
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	68	21	NA	104	64
Successful Completions T4C	0	4	2	0	6
Successful Completions MRT	1	0	0	1	2
Successful Completions RSW!	5	0	3	5	13
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER					

Suffolk County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	103	94	94	86	377
Percent Matched to CCH	95%	98%	100%	95%	97%
Number Matched to CCH	98	92	94	82	366
Number Male	92	87	86	78	343
Number Female	6	5	8	4	23
Number 24 and Younger	16	13	18	6	53
Number 25 to 29	22	24	21	14	81
Number 30 to 49	44	36	43	47	170
Number 50 and Older	16	18	12	14	60
Percent Supervision Level 1	28%	33%	32%	22%	29%
Percent Supervision Level 2	22%	25%	18%	22%	22%
Percent Supervision Level 3	39%	32%	37%	39%	37%
Percent Supervision Level 4	11%	11%	13%	17%	13%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	38	42	33	37	150
Felony Drug	23	22	22	20	87
Felony Property	22	13	16	10	61
Other Felony	15	14	23	15	67
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	0	4	9	13	26

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	104	93	93	102	392
Number Successfully Discharged	93	73	75	74	315
Percent Successfully Discharged	89%	78%	81%	73%	80%
Average LOS Successful	46	46	54	58	51
Percent With Arrest in Program	5%	3%	5%	4%	4%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	1%	1%	1%	2%	1%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	8%	2%	1%	2%	3%
Average Days to First Arrest	25	25	25	32	27
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	33	27	7	37	28
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER	0	0	9	7	16

Ulster County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	31	25	42	24	122
Percent Matched to CCH	94%	100%	98%	100%	98%
Number Matched to CCH	29	25	41	24	119
Number Male	25	23	36	20	104
Number Female	4	2	4	4	14
Number 24 and Younger	4	6	4	4	18
Number 25 to 29	10	6	12	8	36
Number 30 to 49	7	10	20	11	48
Number 50 and Older	8	3	4	1	16
Percent Supervision Level 1	34%	44%	29%	33%	34%
Percent Supervision Level 2	21%	12%	10%	17%	14%
Percent Supervision Level 3	28%	28%	34%	46%	34%
Percent Supervision Level 4	17%	16%	27%	4%	18%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	11	7	8	7	33
Felony Drug	8	8	15	5	36
Felony Property	6	2	9	4	21
Other Felony	4	8	9	8	29
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	11	8	15	8	42

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	34	18	35	33	120
Number Successfully Discharged	30	10	20	30	90
Percent Successfully Discharged	88%	56%	57%	91%	75%
Average LOS Successful	65	54	69	98	75
Percent With Arrest in Program	0%	6%	3%	6%	3%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program	0%	6%	0%	0%	1%
Percent Not Matched to CCH	6%	0%	0%	3%	3%
Average Days to First Arrest	NA	69	14	59	50
Average Days to First Felony Arrest	NA	69	NA	NA	69
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER	0	1	2	10	13

Westchester County CRTF

CRTF Intakes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Total Number of Admissions	55	77	59	33	224
Percent Matched to CCH	96%	97%	97%	100%	97%
Number Matched to CCH	53	75	57	33	218
Number Male	52	67	49	30	198
Number Female	1	8	7	3	19
Number 24 and Younger	11	8	12	3	34
Number 25 to 29	10	19	14	12	55
Number 30 to 49	26	33	21	12	92
Number 50 and Older	6	15	9	6	36
Percent Supervision Level 1	22%	32%	38%	27%	31%
Percent Supervision Level 2	26%	25%	27%	24%	25%
Percent Supervision Level 3	41%	34%	21%	39%	32%
Percent Supervision Level 4	11%	9%	14%	9%	11%
Placing Offense Type					
Violent Felony	33	44	26	18	121
Felony Drug	7	11	11	6	35
Felony Property	2	6	13	4	25
Other Felony	11	14	7	5	37
Number Admitted to T4C					
Number Admitted to MRT					
Number Admitted to RSW!					
Number Admitted to CBI					
Number Admitted to CBI/ER	3	27	21	9	60

CRTF Outcomes	Oct - Dec	Jan - Mar	Apr - Jun	Jul - Sep	Contract YTD
Number Ending Formal Services	0	6	0	0	6
Number Successfully Discharged		0			0
Percent Successfully Discharged		0%			0%
Average LOS Successful		NA			NA
Percent With Arrest in Program		33%			33%
Percent Felony Arrest in Program		33%			33%
Percent Not Matched to CCH		0%			0%
Average Days to First Arrest		41			41
Average Days to First Felony Arrest		41			41
Successful Completions T4C					
Successful Completions MRT					
Successful Completions RSW!					
Successful Completions CBI					
Successful Completions CBI/ER	0	25	15	8	48

Appendix A. Detailed Description of Tables

<u>CRTF Intakes</u> presents intakes to each of the CRTFs for each quarter of the current contract year and the year-to-date. This table includes all intakes since October 1, 2017. If a participant had more than one intake, all intakes to the program are counted. The intakes are then summed to produce a cumulative number of intakes reported during the contract year.

<u>CRTF Discharges</u> presents discharges from each of the CRTFs for each quarter of the current contract year and the year-to-date. This table includes all discharges since October 1, 2017. If a participant had more than one discharge, all discharges from the program are counted. The discharges are then summed to produce a cumulative number of discharges reported during the contract year.

<u>Characteristics of Program Intakes</u> presents more detailed information on participant characteristics. Characteristics include sex, age at admission, DOCCS supervision level, and characteristics of the placement offense. Violent Felony includes all violent felony offenses (VFOs) and VFO-like offenses (see Penal Law (PL) 70.02); Drug Offense includes all PL 220 and PL 221 offenses that are not otherwise VFOs; Property includes non-VFO property offenses (e.g., petit larceny); and Other Offenses includes all other PL and VTL offenses not otherwise categorized. The numbers of admissions to approved CBI and employment readiness programs during each quarter of the contract year are also presented. Participants with missing or invalid NYSIDs are not included in the table. Counts, percentages, and program totals are presented for each quarter of the current contract year and cumulative year-to-date.

<u>Characteristics of Program Discharges</u> presents detailed information about participants discharged during each quarter. The table presents the count and percentage of participants who successfully completed the CRTF program, as well as the average length of stay (LOS) in the CRTF for successful completions (reported in days). This table also includes the percentage of participants rearrested while participating in the program. Percents are based on official criminal history information. Percents are provided for participants with any in-program rearrest, and participants with a rearrest for a felony level offense. The average number of days from intake to the first in-program arrest and first in-program felony arrest are also presented. The table also includes the number of participants completing approved CBI and employment readiness programs during each quarter of the contract year and cumulative year-to-date.

Appendix B. Matching Admissions to CCH

The Computerized Criminal History (CCH) database includes all fingerprintable arrests reported to DCJS, as well as information about case dispositions. CCH data provide a complete history of an arrestee's known criminal activity.¹ OJRP developed the following rules to match intakes to CCH data. After extensive analyses, these rules were determined to provide the best matches to arrests in CCH for the programs funded by DCJS.

Matching Rules:

- 1. Files were first matched on NYSID and DIN, as provided by the programs.
- 2. If there was not an exact match on NYSID and DIN, cases were matched to the last DOCCS release before program admission.
- 3. If the admission could not be matched on NYSID or DOCCS release date, the admission was excluded from further analysis.

The detailed intake tables included in this report present information on only those intakes that were matched to CCH (96% of reported cases). Of the 196 cases not matched to CCH, 13 had invalid NYSIDs, 111 had missing NYSIDs, and 72 did not have an eligible DOCCS release, based on the rules outlined above. Please note that cases not matched to CCH may include juveniles released from OCFS to Parole.

The matching results are summarized below.

Matching Process	Number	Percent
Total Number of Reported Cases	5,257	100%
Match by NYSID and DIN	4,666	89%
Match by NYSID and last DOCCS Release before Intake	395	7%
Total Matched to CCH	5,061	96%
Total Not Matched to CCH	196	4%

Matching CRTF Intakes to CCH

¹ Arrests in CCH are organized by NYSID, which is assigned when an arrestee is fingerprinted. If the case is disposed in favor of the defendant, and the defendant has no prior convictions, the fingerprints are destroyed and the NYSID is no longer assigned to that defendant. If the defendant is re-arrested, a new NYSID is assigned. Because CCH is organized by NYSID, the initial arrest, stored under a different NYSID, is not included in the defendant's arrest history, and would not be reflected in the Participant Characteristics table.